"IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED STATES
. .. For the Western District of New York

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

=Pl

* YABYA GOBA, DOB 01/30/1977; CRIMINAL COMPLAINT
. BAEIM ALWAN, DOB 12/09/1872;
SAAFAL MOSED, DOB 06/11/78;
‘YASETH TAHER, DOB 12/08/17 and
FAYSAL GATAB, DOB 03/26/76
Delendant

_ Magistrate #

I, Edward J. Neadham, the undersigned tomplainant, being duly sworn state the
follewing is true and eorrect ta the best of my knowledge and belie=.
BetWeen on or about a spacific date umknown but at least from the Spring 2091
through the preéent, in the Western District of New Yark and elsewhore, the
defendants, YAHYA GOEA, DOB 01/30/1977;  SAHIM ALWAY, DOB 12/09/1972;
| Uncharged Co-Conspirator A; Uncharged Co-Conspirator B; Uncharged Co-
Congpirator C; SHAFAL, MOSED, DOB .06/11/78; YASETH TAHER, DOB 12/09/77 and
FAYSAT, GALAR, DOB 03/26/76 did knowingly and unlawfully provide, attempt o
provide and conspire to provide matexial support and rasources to a foreign
terrorist ¢rganization in violation of Title 18 United States Code, Sections
23398 and 2.

I further stste that I am a Speclal Agent of - the Federal Bureau of
Investigation and that this complaint is based on the facts set out in my

attached affidavit.

. st '49 bl _

Slonarure of Comriainani

Swern t0 before me and subgscribed in my presence,

_September /9 ., 2002 at _Buffalo, NY

Dago Clty ana Srace

chard J. Areara, .8 i i T

Mt & TIT1E O Judigial offigerp Signacure of J
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UNYTED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF REW IORK

State of New York)
County of Erie )
City of Bulffalo )
' AFFIDAVIT
' EDWARD J. NEEDHAM, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. I = a Special Agent of the Federal Bureau of
Investigarion [(FRI), assigned to the Joint Terroriusm Task Forece
(TTF) for the Western District of New York [WONY). The JITF is &
combination of federal and state law enforcement formed in order teo
identify and investigate internatichal and domestic terrorism and
terrorists. T have baen a.FBI Special Agent for over 14 years,
having worked on international terrorism cases for 13 years. In
those years, I have conducted terrorist investigatliuns concerning
incidents occurring in the Unitved States and sbroad. Many of thess
investigations have involved Usama Bin Laden ‘and the al Qaeda
organization. I have alse received specialized countertezrorism
training régar‘ding t1sama Bin Laden and atha operations of al Qaeda

and other terrorist organizations. I have been the coordinator of

the JTTF-WDNY since its inception last year.

2. I make this affidavit in support of & criminal’
complaint charging SAHIM A. ATWRN, DOB 12/0971972; YAHYA A, GOBA,

DOB 01/30/1977; Uncharged Co-Conspirator B; SEAFAL MOSBD, DOB



[;6(11/78; YASETH *TaHER, DOB 12/09/77 and FATSAL GALABR, DOB
03/26/76, all citizens of the United States, with a violation of
'I'itl.e 1B, United States Codeg, Sections 233%3 and 2, namely:
providing, attempting to provi'da and eonspiring o provide material
support and resources to designated terreriar organizaticns.

]

3, This affidavit is submitted for a limited purpose,
that is, a probable cause determination; net all faets of the
investigation are contained herein. This affidavit is based upen my
personal knowledge, experience, tralning, information supplied to
me by other law enforcement and government perscnnel, my review of
documents and records, as well as uthar- information developed
during the course of this investigation.

Introduction

4. At all relevant times from in or about 1999,-an

international terroxist group existed which ha.; Tbeen dedicated to

opposing non-Islamie govermments with foree and violenes. This

._organization was founded by Usama Bin Laden and others. From in or

about 1989 until the present, the group has baen rafarrad i‘:u as "al

Qaeda” ("the Base”).

5. Bin Laden and al Qaeda has ‘viglently opposed the
United States for several reasons. First, the United States is and

has been regarded as an "infidel” because it is not governed in a



mannsr consistent wikh the grpup's extremiag i;terpr%tatidn df
Telam. Second, the United States is and has been viewed as
providing essential support fer other Minfidel governments and
institutions, pazrticularly the governments of Saudi Afabia and
Egypt, the mation of Israel, and the United Nationms organlzation,
which are and have been :egaréed ag enemias of the group. Third, al
Qaeda opposed the invelvemant of the Onited Stares armed forces in
the Gulf War in 1991 and in Dperation Restoze Hope in Somalia ip
1997 and 1993. In particular, al Qaeda oppesed the continued
presence of Rrnecican military forces in Saudi Arabia (and elsewvhera
on the Saudi Arabian peninsula) following the Gulf War. Fourth,-al
"Qaeda opposed the United States Governmené becsuse of the arrest,
conviction and imprisonment of persons belonging to al Qaedz or its
affiliated terrorist groups or those with whom it worked. For these
and other reasons, Bin Laden declarsd a jihad, or holy warx, agaiﬁst
the United States, which he has carried out tﬁéough al Qaeda and

its affilisted organizations.

6. One of the principal geals of al Qaada is and has
been to drive the United States armed forces out of Sandi Arabia
(and elsewhere on the Saudi Arabian peninsula) =nd Somalia by

violence. Members of al Qaeda issusd fatwahs (rulings on Islamic

law) indiecating that such attacks were both proper and osceasary.

7. Since at least 1989, Usama Bin Laden and the
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terrorist group al Qaeda sponsorsd, 'managed, and/or financially
supported training camps in Afghanistan, which zamps were used to
instruct membars and assoclates of al Qaeda and ivs affiliated
terrorist groups in the use of firearms, explosives, chemieal
weapons, and other weapons of mass destruction. Camps Such as al-
¥Farbogq have been used by al.Qaeda for the purposes of training.
Bazed upon my training and experience, Usama Bin Laden has been
known to visit and address trainees at such camps. In addition to
providing tzaining in the use of various weapons, these eamps have
bheen used to conduct operational planning‘ against Undted States
rargets around the world.
wfendanks

9. Uncharged Cu;Conspirator ‘A is a mative Horn citizen
of the Dnited States, who ils presently belleved to be zresiding in
Yemen, whose last known U.S§. residence is an address in Lackawanna,
BNY. VUachargad Co-Conspirator B is & native blc;m citlzen of the
United States, who is presently believed to be in Yemen, whose last

known U.5. residence ia In Lackawanna, NY. FAYSAL GALAE im a

native born eitizen of the United States, who is pressntly residing

pLackawanna, NY, SAHIM B, ALWAN 1z 3 native
born citizen of the United States, who is presently résiding at M
RN Lackawanna, NY. YABYA A. GOBA is a native born

citizen of the United States, who -is presently residing at MR

m. Lackawanna, NY ard who has xecently
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purchased a house at WNNWHNIRMENERRY, Lackawanna, NY. SHAFAL

+

MOSED is a native born citizen of the United States, who i3

presently residiag at AWSEEEER-. Laickawanna, NY. YASEIN

SARER is a hative born United States citizen, who is presently

residing at S ENCEERSGENEE, Lackawanna, NY.
The Investiguiion

9. The -investigation was initiated as a result of
infsrmation received by the FBI that a number of individuals frem
the Lackawanna, New 'York agea had attended and participated in
terrorist training ininfghanistan during the late spring and early

summer of 2001.

10. In the past year, myself and other Agents of the FBI
have had occasion to speak to SAHIM A. ALWAN several times. During
those conversations, Mr. ALWAN advised that himself, Unchargsd Co-
Conspirator B, Oncharged Co-Uonspirator A, YAHYA GOBA, YASEIN
TAHER, SHAFAL MOSED, FAYSAL GALAR, and Uncharged Co-Conspirator C

{all residents or former residents of Lackawanna, New York) had

" heen in Pakistan during April and May, 2001.. Mr. RLWAN further

advised that the p{zrposa of their being in Pakistan was to attend
religious training kanown as Tablighi Jamaat.
11. Information frem U.5. Customs revealed that FAYSAL

GRLAB, SHAFAL MOSED and YASEIN TARER entered the United States on



June 27, 2001, through JFK Airport in Wew York City.

12, on July 8, 2002, SHAFAL MOSED was interviewed by
Agents of the FBI. On Jyly 26, 2002, FBI Agents had occasion to
intexview YASBIN TARER régarding his alleged travel to Pakistan.
Both YASEIN TAHER and SHAFEL ﬂOSED acknowledged that they had been
in Pakistan for approXimately three months between Bpril, 2007 and
July 2001 for Tablighl Jamaat training. They alse confirmed that
they had traveled with FAYSAL GALAB to Pakistan for the training.
Both were aware that SAHIM ALWAN had alsc attended the Tablighi

-Jamaat training at the same time.

13. On September 11, 2002; Uncharged Co-Conspirator C
wae interviewad by a Special Agent of the FBI outside the United
States. After being advised of his Miranda rights and agreeing‘tn
speak to tpe agents, Uncharged EOMConspiratar éwacanWledged that
he and other individuals from Lackawanna, New York had traveled to
Pakistan in the summer of 2001 in order to attend Tablighi Jamaat
raligious training. He advisad that the.three'persons he traveled
with ware SAHIM ALWAN, YAHYA GORA and Uncharggd Ca-cbnspirator B.
Uncharged Co-Conspirater C initially denied aay travel into
Afghanistan. _Uncharged Co-Conspirator C scated that the four
individuals traveled from Lackawarna to Toronte to London to Dubai,

, United Arab emeritus, to Karachi, Pakistan.



14. The interviewing Agentg advised uUncharged Co~
Conspirator C that they believed he was not being truthful.
shertly thereafter, Uncharged Co-Conspirator % disglosed to the
agents that he had not been fully candid and made additional

statements to the interviewing Agents.
1

15, After again being reminded of his rights and after
having those rights re-read to him, Uncharged {o-Conspirator C
related that he wished te continuep speaking with interviewing

Agents.

1¢. Uncharged Co-Conspirator C stated zhat in June 2001,
he and his three friends {GOBA,. Uncharged Cao-Conspirater B and
RLWAN) traveled to Pakistan. He toid the agent that they had spent
ong week in Karachi, Pakistan, then flew to Quetta, Pakistén-
After spending a night, the four individuals 5£nva the following
day to Kandahar, Afghanistan where they stayed in & guest hedse for
a short time. They then went to the Ak-Faroou Tralning Camb near
Kandahar. While at the training camp, Uncharged Co-Conspirator C
stated that he way trained.on the use of the Xalashnikov assault
rifle, handguns and long range rifles. Uncharged Co-Conspirater C
further stated that Uncharged Go~Genspirator A was already in
Afghanistan when they azrrived and that Uncharged Co-Conspirator A

attended the same training camp. Uncharged Co-Conspirator A was



T armae

obsarved receiving training in heavy artillerwy,

17. Unchiacged Co-Conspirator C told the agents that the
leader of his group of four to Pakistan and Afghanistan was fHHYa
GOEA . Uncharged Co-Congpiratér C stated that thers uére
approximately 200 people beinb trained in the camp. This group of
200 was divided 1pto smaller groups of 20. He further stated all
&f $ha individuals atten&ing the camp had or were assigned code
pnames and that his (Uncharged Co-Censpirator C) codename was ABOD
OMAR ALYAFEI. He provided the Uncharged CowConspirator A's

codename .

18. Uncharged Cu—Conépixatnr'c stated that while at the
training éamp, USAEMA BIN LADEN visited the camp and gave a speech

to all ¢f the trainees.

19. Uncharged Co-Conspirator C related that SAHIM ALWAN

tralned for 1 or 2 weeks.

-

20. Oncharged Co—Cnnspiraéa:-c stated that prior te his
most recent trip from tpe United States to Bahrain {in the Surmesr
of 2002}, he sought a Faﬁlacemant passport, falsely claimipg that
he had last his passpert. He further stated that he made this
false claim so as to conceal hls previgus travels from immigration
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authorities. In 5o doing, it is submitted chat Uncharged Co-
Conspirstor € did so te avoid having his passport reflect his

earlier formal entry into Paklstan.

21. Uncharged Co-Conspirator ‘C confirmed that he has
maintzined an s-mail- account‘and has communicated with Uncharged
Co-Conspirator A by éwmail. He further stated that on July 18,
5002, he sent ap e-mail to a persom, whe is at this time "an

uncharged co~consplratex, advising that person of information which

law enforcement personnel interpret as referring to possible

terrorist activity.

22, On September 12, 2002, I had occasion to re-interview
SAHIM ALWAN at his place of amploymem': at Medina, MNew York. After
an initial discussion, Mr. ALWAN discloged that -he had not been
completely tzuthfnl. He sfated that he ané1 his friends had
attended éerrorist rraining in Afghanistan when they went to ths
Middle East in the spring/sunmer, 2001,

23, Mr. ALWAN advised that a total of seven individuals
frem Lackawanna, New York had travelad te Afghanistan and that they
had gone in two groups. The first group left in approximately
April, 2001, c¢onsisting of SHAFAL MOSED, YASEIN TAHFER and FAYSAL
GALAB, The second group left in May, 2001 and consisted of

himself, YRHYA GOBA, Uncharged Co-Comspirator B and !Jm::hafged Co—
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conspirator C.

24, Mr., ALWAN further advised that his group left
Lackawanna, New York on May 14, 2001 and traveled to Toronto, then
to United Arab Emirates, then to Karachi, Pakistan. When they
arrived, they were met hy Uﬁcharged Co-Conspirator A, a former
Lackawanna resident, U.5. Citizen and an acquaintance of ALWAN, vho
therecupon arranged for their further trensportatfion inmto
Afghanistan. After about € days, based upon arrangements made by
Uncharged Co-Conspiratox A, YAHYA GOBA ard Uncharged Co-Consplraton
¢ traveled to Quetta, Pakistan. After approximately 39 dayas in
Karachi, Uacharged Co-Conspiratar B, SAHIM ALWAW and Uncharged Co-

Conspirator A traveled to Quetta, Pakistan where they stayed at a

guest house for one day. The next day Uncharged co—conspira%or By.

SAMIM ATWAN and Uncharged Co-c_:onsﬁirator A went by Butomnbilv; o
Kandahar, hfghanistan. Upon arrival in Kandéﬂéx. Uncharged Co-
Conspirator A left for an unknewn location while Uncharged Cow-
Conspirater B and SAHIM ALWAN stiyed at & guest house .for four to
five days. ®hile at the guest house, they recsived lectures on
Jihad (holy wax), prayers znd justificatinn.for uaind auiﬁidé as a
weapon. On the feurth e¢r fifth day, tincharged Co-Conspirator B,
and SAHTM ALWAN were taken to a training camp near Kandahar-in a
bus with ten other unknown individuals. Upon arrival at the camp,

SAHIM ALWEN saw Uncharged Co-Conspirator C, YAHYA GUBA, SHAFAL

MOSED, YASEIN TAHER end FAYSAL GALAB. SHAFAL MOSLD, YASEIN TBHER_.
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and FAYSAL GALAB advised that they had been in training for 3-4
weeks, receiving instruction cm' firearms and mountain climbing.
tnecharged Co=Conspirator C, and YAHYA GOBA jn:ined Uncharged Co-
Conspirator B, and SRHIM ALWAN for the start of the Baslc camp. On
or zbout the fifth day of training., SAHIM ALWAN saw Uncharged Co—
Conspirater A who told him thati. he (Uncharged Co-Conspiratdr B) was
in a more advanced, training camp nearby. Uncharged Co-Conspirator
2 seemed te pecsonally know some of the trainers at the camp.

tncharged Co-Conspirator A stated he was recelving trzining on

anti-aircraft gung. ’ K

25. During the course of thae éraining, the attendees
were given instruction in the usa of firearms. The training was
scheduled to last seven weaks. While at the tralning camp, in
approximately the secend week, USAMA BIN LADEN visited the camp and
Epoke éo all of the trainees. USAMA BIN LADEN g';aiire a speech absut
the alliance of the Islamic Jihad and al Qaesda, espsusing anti-
United States and antiw-Israel statements. Az.wni saw all of his
acquaintances from Lackawanna'except for Uncharged Co-Conspirator

A at the speech.

26. After departing the.training camp, Mr. ALWAN stated

that he then returned to the United States in late June, 2001.

27. A check with Canadian Immigration revealed that
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SAMIM ALWAN entered Canada at Toronto Pearson Rirport on Air Canada

at 7;00 BM June 21, 2001.

28, At all tites relevant hereunder, the Secretary of

State had and has designated, pursuant to Bection 219 af the
]

Immig;ation'and Naturalizatiop Act, al Qaeda and Egyptian Islamic

Jihad (EIF) as £qQreign terzorist organizations.

conclusien

29. Based upen the foregoing, it is submitted that thers
is probable cause to believe that the abuve defendants " have
violated Title 1B, United $States Code, 5e§£ions 23398 and 2, tﬁat
venue resides in the Western Pistrict of New York and that warrantg

should be issued for their arrest.

tofwircl, 7 rleodtfo
EDWARD J. NEED
Epecial Agent
Federal Bureau of Investigation
Buffalo, Haw York

Subscribed and swern to
pefore me this /3 day of
September. 2002.

Unites States DEStrict Court Judge
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